
*Attachments

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 
Regular Meeting of The Board of Trustees 

THE MEETING WILL BEGIN AT 7:00 PM AT THE 
WINNETKA LIBRARY 

708 OAK STREET, WINNETKA, IL  60093 
AGENDA 

Monday, December 10, 2018 
7:00 PM 

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Public Comments

IV. Vote to Approve Minutes of November 19, 2018 Regular Meeting*

V. Financial Report
• Approve November 2018 Financial Statements*

VI. Library Report
• Board President’s Comments (President Johnson)
• Director’s Report (Director Wolf) *

VII. Liaisons to Other Organizations – Reports
• RAILS – Reaching Across Illinois Library System (Director Wolf)
• Winnetka Village (Trustee Anwar)
• Northfield Village (Trustee Neustadt)

VIII. Unfinished Business
• Discussion of Proposed Patio Project feedback
• Discussion and Vote to Approve Library Staff Health Insurance Coverage Change*
• Discussion on Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Per Capita Grant Requirements*

IX. New Business
• Discussion and Vote on final payment application to Shales McNutt, LLC for work done for the

Renovation Project*
• Presentation and Discussion of Digital Materials Strategy
• Presentation on the Progress of the Strategic Plan and discussion on steps for creating the next plan

X. Communications
• The District will be closed Monday, December 24 and Tuesday, December 25 in observance of the

Christmas holiday.  The District will be closed on Monday, December 31 and Tuesday, January 1 in
observance of the New Year’s holiday.

XI. Public Comments

XII. Adjournment

1



 WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

November 19, 2018 

I. Call to Order
The meeting was held at the Northfield Branch Library, 1785 Orchard Lane Northfield,
Illinois. President Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. A quorum was
present.

II. Roll Call
Present: President Brian Johnson, and Trustees Jean-Paul Ruiz-Funes, Suzie Shoup, Keta
McCarthy, Lois Neustadt, Raheela Anwar and Kathleen Reichert; and Library Director
Rebecca Wolf.

Present were library employees; Nicola White (Administrative Assistant), Sarah Quish
(Head of Communications and Marketing), and Stephanie Girardi (Acquisitions and
Technical Services Associate). Present was Lauterbach and Amen partner Jamie Wilkey.
Present was Winnetka resident Jeffrey Liss and from the League of Women Voters was
Nancy Fox also in attendance.

III. Public Comments
No public comments.

IV. Presentation of Annual Audit by Lauterbach and Amen, LLP*
Partner Jamie Wilkey of Lauterbach and Amen presented an overview of the audit for the
2017-2018 Fiscal Year.

Wilkey stated that the two main goals of the Financial Statement Audit are to ensure the
financial statements are materially correct, and to confirm statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles that are accepted in the United States of America.

Wilkey announced that it was a very successful audit process with no issues to bring to
the Board. Wilkey stated that no auditor proposed adjusting journal entries. The District
was issued an ‘Unmodified Opinion,’ which is a clean audit opinion, and the highest level
Lauterbach and Amen can issue.

Wilkey stated that the District had an overall increase in equity of $188,057 that
primarily came from the capital asset investments that were made during the year.

Wilkey stated that General Fund revenues exceeded budget due to interest earnings, and
General Fund expenditures exceeded budget due to the timing of capital projects. Wilkey
stated that the ending fund balance within the General Fund totaled just over 2.5 million
dollars on June 30, 2018. This represents about 49% of operating expenditures, or a six-
month reserve.

Wilkey reported that as of December 31, 2017 IMRF was 102.7% funded.

2



President Johnson asked about the amount of expenses from the previous fiscal year 
compared to last year’s preceding fiscal year. Wilkey responded that she did not currently 
have last year’s number but could find it and get back to him.  

Director Wolf asked if the resolution that the Board will be passing tonight has already 
been reflected in the audit, and Wilkey responded that it has.  

Wilkey reviewed the Management Letter with the Board. She indicated that the District 
has no new management recommendations for this fiscal year and stated that all prior 
recommendations have been fully implemented.   

V. Vote to Approve Minutes of October 15, 2018 Regular Meeting*
A MOTION was made by Trustee Neustadt to approve the October 15, 2018 Regular
Board Meeting Minutes and seconded by Trustee McCarthy.

The MOTION passed on a voice vote.

VI. Financial Report
Director Wolf stated that revenues are coming in slightly higher than expected as we
continue to pay bills from last fiscal year.

Director Wolf stated that interest is higher than anticipated.

Director Wolf stated that fines are continuing to trend down due to automatic renewals,
and she expects this to continue.

Director Wolf stated that capital is running high due to expected payments from previous
projects. She is hoping to close the projects soon.

A MOTION was made by Trustee McCarthy to approve the October 2018 Financial
Statements and seconded by Trustee Neustadt.

The MOTION passed on a voice vote.

VII. Library Report
BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT:
President Johnson attended the Patio Project Open House at the Winnetka Library.

President Johnson stated that the District received favorable publicity in the Winnetka
Current article, “Winnetka Library Patio Project to Begin Fall 2019.”

President Johnson attended the Winnetka Caucus Fundraiser & Candidates Forum and
met two of the three new trustee candidates. He stated that the three candidates are:
Travis Gosselin, Brian Schmisek, and Deborah Vandergrift. Trustee McCarthy suggested
inviting the candidates to future Board meetings, and Director Wolf responded that she
will reach out to the candidates once they are officially nominated.

3



 
 

LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
Director Wolf announced that the Winnetka Library parking lot has been restriped, and 
the District has received compliments from patrons.  
 
Director Wolf stated that the District received several positive comments at the Patio 
Project Open House, as well as fifteen comments that were received online. She stated 
that the two main concerns were having to deal with more construction and making sure 
the renovation is ADA compliant.  
 
President Johnson stated that one of the trustees received a recommendation for parking 
to be addressed during the second or third stage of renovations. Director Wolf agreed. 
 
Director Wolf stated that patrons requested the patio include outlets, tables, and 
additional lighting.  

 
Director Wolf received an excited comment stating that the new patio will be a gateway 
to Winnetka.  
 
Director Wolf stated that the District is still open for comments, and has a positive 
momentum going forward. 
 
Trustee Ruiz-Funes asked how the District is collecting comments, and Director Wolf 
responded that comments are mainly collected online. 
 
Director Wolf announced that Naomi Wolfson, Head of Technical Services, has resigned 
from her position and will be joining the team in Independence, Missouri’s Mid-
Continent Public Library as their Technical Services Manager.  
 
Director Wolf stated that circulation for the month of October is doing well, and that 
automatic renewals are continuing to increase circulation. She stated that next month the 
Board will view statistics with and without renewals, as well as hear staff presentations 
regarding digital material.  

 
Director Wolf announced that the District met the per capita requirement for the Illinois 
Veterans History Project. The goal is to recognize veterans for their service, and to create 
a digital archive and history of veterans in Illinois. 
 
Director Wolf stated that study room usage is up again; rooms are being booked and 
used. She also stated that the District is ready for finals week. The library will be open 
late for students.  
 
Director Wolf stated that the Studio anniversary showcase went very well. The District 
broke records with the number of patrons who attended. 

 
Director Wolf announced that the winter issue of the Source was mailed to District 
homes. 
 
 

4



 
 

The District was asked about the number of Winnetka-Northfield resident cardholders 
using the Studio in comparison to other library cardholders. Director Wolf gathered 
information on the studio fees being charged and found that 67% were Winnetka 
cardholders, 2% were Kenilworth cardholders, and 31% were other library cardholders.   
 
Trustee Reichert mentioned that some patrons bring their own materials and therefore do 
not pay studio fees. Director Wolf responded that it is not accurate of all the patrons who 
use it; it gives us an idea of usage and materials. Overall, Director Wolf found that the 
Studio is primarily used by Winnetka-Northfield patrons.  
 
Trustee Neustadt asked if there will be a set of rules for the Studio given that the holidays 
are approaching. Director Wolf stated that there will be a sign-up sheet and time limits 
will be enforced.  

 
Trustee McCarthy inquired about the decline in youth program attendance. Director Wolf 
responded that the number of programs is not down significantly, but the District has had 
patrons register for programs and not show up. Director Wolf said she would speak to the 
Head of Youth services regarding last month’s programs. 

 
Director Wolf announced that the District will soon have a programming librarian who 
will be intricately involved in the planning and execution of programs. President Johnson 
asked if this new position is in the budget, and Director Wolf responded that it is because 
the Head of Technical Services position will not be replaced; instead the District will be 
creating three Librarian 2 positions. Director Wolf stated that this is an opportunity for 
staff to grow within the District without becoming management. 

 
Trustee McCarthy asked for more information about the District’s new podcast, 
“Review.” Director Wolf explained that staff took it upon themselves to start a podcast 
where they discuss a variety of books across all genres and reading levels.  
 
Trustee Ruiz-Funes mentioned that the District is still in a system transition, so the 
circulation statistics are distorted. Director Wolf stated that the staff presentation in 
December will provide the Board with the information that the District does have.  

 
VIII. Liaisons to Other Organizations-Reports 

• RAILS - Director Wolf stated that there is nothing new to report on RAILS.  
 

• Winnetka Village- President Johnson stated that there is nothing new to report 
from the Winnetka Village. 

 
• Northfield Village- Trustee Neustadt stated that the only change in Northfield Village is 

that construction will be occurring on Willow Road to replace East Willow Cleaners 
with a drive-thru bank.  

 
IX. Unfinished Business 

• Discussion and Vote on Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Tax Levy* 
Director Wolf reviewed the Tax Levy with the Board.  

 

5



 
 

A MOTION was made by Trustee Reichert to approve the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Tax 
Levy and seconded by Trustee McCarthy. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYE: Trustees Shoup, Reichert, Ruiz-Funes, Johnson, Anwar, McCarthy and Neustadt 
NAY: 
 

• Discussion of Proposed Patio Project Feedback 
Trustee Reichert asked when the Board will hear from The Lakota Group again. Director 
Wolf responded that her plan is too meet with them again in January.  

 
X. New Business 

• Discussion and Vote to Approve Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2017-2018* 
There were no concerns regarding the Lauterbach and Amen Annual Audit for Fiscal 
Year 2017-2018. 
 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Shoup to approve the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 
2017-2018 and seconded by Trustee Neustadt. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYE: Trustees Shoup, Reichert, Ruiz-Funes, Johnson, Anwar, McCarthy and Neustadt 
NAY: 
 

• Vote to Amend Fund Balance Policy* 
Director Wolf noted that the only change to the Fund Balance Policy is that the District 
will make funds whole at the end of the year from the General Fund.  
 
Trustee Ruiz-Funes asked what this amendment affects. Director Wolf stated that it only 
affects the restricted revenue funds for IMRF and FICA.  
 
Trustee Ruiz-Funes asked for a review of why the Board will be making this amendment. 
Director Wolf responded that it is because the District funds the IMRF and FICA funds 
from the General Fund, so they are making the statement true, and being more transparent 
about what they do at the end of the year. 
 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Anwar to Amend the Fund Balance Policy and 
seconded by Trustee Neustadt. 

 
The MOTION passed on a voice vote. 

 
• Vote to Approve Resolution to move funds from the Special Reserve Fund to the General 

Fund* 
Director Wolf explained that the District will be transferring funds in order to spend 
$500,000 on last year’s projects. The District will spend the operating account down to 
six months of operating reserve, and then move $500,000 from the Special Reserve Fund 
to pay for capital projects.  
 

6



 
 

A MOTION was made by Trustee Anwar to approve the Resolution to move funds from 
the Special Reserve Fund to the General Fund and seconded by Trustee McCarthy. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYE: Trustees Shoup, Reichert, Ruiz-Funes, Johnson, Anwar, McCarthy and Neustadt 
NAY: 
 

• Vote to Approve Resolution to move funds from the General Fund to FICA and IMRF 
Funds* 
Director Wolf explained that the District will move funds from the General Fund to make 
the IMRF and FICA funds whole, and therefore start this year at zero.  

 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Anwar to approve the Resolution to move funds from 
the General Fund to the IMRF Fund and seconded by Trustee Shoup. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYE: Trustees Shoup, Reichert, Ruiz-Funes, Johnson, Anwar, McCarthy and Neustadt 
NAY: 
 
A MOTION was made by Trustee Neustadt to approve the Resolution to move funds 
from the General Fund to the FICA Fund and seconded by Trustee McCarthy. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
AYE: Trustees Shoup, Reichert, Ruiz-Funes, Johnson, Anwar, McCarthy and Neustadt 
NAY: 

 
• Discussion and Vote to Approve Library Staff Health Insurance Coverage Change* 

Director Wolf explained that the current staff health insurance policy does not cover 
anything beyond the individual and recommended that the District start covering a 
portion of family insurance. 
 
Trustee Ruiz-Funes asked how much the District would have to budget in order to change 
the health insurance coverage. Director Wolf stated that we do not currently budget for 
all eligible staff to have health insurance because typically not everyone elects to use it.  

 
President Johnson asked how many people elect for family coverage at other libraries. 
Director Wolf responded that she will gather that information and present it to the Board 
in December.  
 
The Board agreed that they are all supportive of adjusting the health insurance policy but 
will consider the financial implications before voting. 

  
XI. Communications 

• The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on December 10, 2018 at the Winnetka 
Library. 
Director Wolf stated that December 10, 2018 is also the first day for Trustee candidates 
to turn in materials.  

 

7



 
 

• District will close at 5 p.m. on Wednesday, November 21. The District will be closed on 
Thursday, November 22 in observance of the Thanksgiving holiday. 

 
XII. Public Comments 

Jeffrey Liss asked if the decline in program attendance includes all age groups. Director 
Wolf responded that it is primarily in Youth Services. Liss commended the District on 
introducing programs to patrons that may not represent popular taste. 
 
Jeffrey Liss asked for clarification regarding the suggestion for diagonal parking. 
Director Wolf stated that they were referring to the street parking becoming diagonal.  
 
Jeffrey Liss asked if there were any significant changes made to the Patio Project plans, 
to which the Board responded no.  
 
Jeffrey Liss thanked the Board for their work and wished everyone a Happy 
Thanksgiving.  

 
XIII. Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, a MOTION to adjourn was 
made by Trustee Neustadt and seconded by Trustee Shoup. The MOTION passed on a 
voice vote and President Johnson adjourned the meeting at 8:28 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Nicola White 
Recording Secretary 

 
 
 

____________________________ Brian Johnson, President 
 

 
____________________________ Suzanne Shoup, Secretary 

 

8



Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 2018 November 2018 % of Budget
Variance vs. 

Prorated Budget
Revenues

   Total 0004000 Property Taxes Collections  $            3,729,392  $        1,559,122  $          1,792,743 48.1%  $               233,621 
   Total 0004500 Interest  $                  18,000  $                7,500  $                30,143 167.5%  $                  22,643 
   1004040 Replacement Tax  $                  20,000  $                8,333  $                10,484 52.4%  $                    2,151 
   Total 1004050 Per Capita Grant  $                  14,107  $                5,878  $                22,890 162.3%  $                  17,012 
   1004060 Kenilworth Services  $                100,000  $              41,667  $                24,291 24.3%  $                (17,375)
   Total 1004100 Fines  $                  35,000  $              14,583  $                  8,580 24.5%  $                  (6,004)
   1004120 Studio Fees  $                    4,500  $                1,875  $                     737 16.4%  $                  (1,138)

   Total 1004150 Lost/Damaged Materials  $                    4,500  $                1,875  $                    (220) -4.9%  $                  (2,095)
   Total 1004300 Copy/Printing  $                    9,000  $                3,750  $                  2,886 32.1%  $                      (864)
   Total 1004700 Book Sales  $                    2,000  $                    833  $                  1,038 51.9%  $                       204 
   1004775 Miscellaneous Revenue  $                             -  $                         -  $                     222  $                       222 
   Total 1004800 Contributions  $                  30,000  $              12,500  $                        62 0.2%  $                (12,438)
Total Revenues  $            3,966,499  $        1,657,916  $          1,893,857 47.7%  $               235,941 

Expenses
   1000000 Fund 10 General Expenses

      Total 10.5100 IT Services                    173,150                  72,146                    84,722 48.9%                    (12,576)

      Total 1005000 Administrative Services                    356,425                148,510                  142,235 39.9%                        6,276 

      Total 1005100 Personnel                 1,835,000                764,583                  710,690 38.7%                      53,893 
      Total 1005900 Programming-District 
Initiative                      81,100                  33,792                    29,995 37.0%                        3,797 

      Total 1015300 Adult Services - Winnetka                    475,000                197,917                  257,617 54.2%                    (59,700)
      Total 1015400 Youth/Children's Svcs.-
Winnetka                      56,900                  23,708                    23,856 41.9%                          (148)

      Total 1025300 Adult Services - Northfield                      61,000                  25,417                    25,271 41.4%                            146 
      Total 1025400 Youth/Children's Sv.-
Northfield                      32,500                  13,542                    11,535 35.5%                        2,007 

      Total 1035800 Capital Outlay                    650,000                270,833                  258,268 39.7%                      12,566 

   Total 1000000 Fund 10 General Expenses                3,721,075            1,550,448              1,544,188 41.5%                        6,260 
         

Total Revenues                 3,966,499             1,657,916              1,893,857 47.7%                    235,941 
Total Expenses                 3,721,075             1,550,448              1,544,188 41.5%                        6,260 
Net Operating Income                    245,424                107,468                  349,669 142.5%  $               242,201 

7005000 Fund 70 Building/Equipment  $          304,788.00  $        50,798.00  $          37,940.21 12%  $          (12,857.79)
2005100 Fund 30 IMRF  $          105,000.00  $        17,500.00  $          26,313.56 25.1% 8,813.56$              
4005100 Fund 40 Liability  $            35,000.00  $           5,833.33  $          15,070.00 43.1% 9,236.67$              
3005100 Fund 30 FICA 125,000.00$          20,833.33$         17,780.45$          14% (3,052.88)$             
6005100 Unemployment Payment 1,000.00$               166.67$              -$                       0 (166.67)$                 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Library Fund - Cash

July 2018 - June 2019
November 2018 - 41%

9



Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
General Fund Income Statement

July, 2018 - June, 2019
November 2018 - 41%

Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018

% of 
Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Income
   0004000 Property Taxes Collections   
      1004000 GF -Property Taxes  $    3,741,892  $    1,559,122  $ 1,792,743 48%  $     233,621 
   Total 0004000 Property Taxes Collections  $    3,741,892  $    1,559,122  $ 1,792,743 48%  $     233,621 
   0004500 Interest             18,000               7,500 
      0004501 Checking Interest Income
         1004501 Checking Interest Income-GF            1,278   
      1004525 FT Money Market-Interest               657   
      1004595 FT Investment Interest Income          28,207   
   Total 0004500 Interest  $         18,000  $           7,500  $      30,143 167%  $       22,643 
   1004040 Replacement Tax  $         20,000  $           8,333  $      10,484 52%  $         2,151 
   1004050 Per Capita Grant   
      1004051 Per Capita Grant-WNK             14,107               5,878          21,696                    2 
      1004052 Per Capita Grant-KNK                     -                       -              1,194            (1,194)
   Total 1004050 Per Capita Grant  $         14,107  $           5,878  $      22,890 162%  $       17,012 
   1004060 Kenilworth Services           100,000             41,667          24,291 24%          (17,375)
   1004100 Fines             35,000 
      1014100 Fines - Winnetka            7,375   
      1024100 Fines - Northfield            1,205   
   Total 1004100 Fines  $         35,000  $         14,583  $        8,580 25%  $        (6,004)
   1004120 Studio Fees               4,500               1,875               737 16%            (1,138)
   1004150 Lost/Damaged Materials               4,500               1,875                   -   
      1014150 Lost/Damaged Mat.-Winnetka              (174)   
      1024150 Lost/Damaged Mat.-Northfield                (46)   
   Total 1004150 Lost/Damaged Materials  $           4,500  $           1,875  $          (220) -5%  $        (2,095)
   1004200 Non Resident Fees  $                 -                       -    $        1,166             1,166 
   1004300 Copy/Printing               9,000               3,750 
      1014300 Copy/Printing - Winnetka            2,069   
      1024300 Copy/Printing - Northfield               818   
   Total 1004300 Copy/Printing  $           9,000  $           3,750  $        2,886 32%  $           (864)
   1004700 Book Sales               2,000                  833 
      1014700 Book Sales - Winnetka            1,038   
   Total 1004700 Book Sales  $           2,000  $              833  $        1,038 52%  $            204 
   1004775 Miscellaneous Revenue  $           222  $            222 
   1004800 Contributions             30,000             12,500 
      1004880 Gift Fund (over $100)
      1004885 Gift Fund (under $100)                   0 
      1004895 Friends Donations                 61 
   Total 1004800 Contributions  $         30,000  $         12,500  $             62 0%  $      (12,438)
Total Income  $    3,978,999  $    1,657,916  $ 1,895,023 48%  $     237,107 
Gross Profit  $    3,978,999  $    1,657,916  $ 1,895,023 48%  $     237,107 
Expenses
   1000000 Fund 10 General Expenses   
      10.5100 IT Services   
         1005132 CCS Operating             72,000             30,000            5,711 8%          (24,289)

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

10



Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018

% of 
Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

         1005133 OCLC             11,250               4,688          34,714 309%           30,026 
         1005134 Software             31,000             12,917          19,855 64%             6,938 
         1005135 LAN Management             55,000             22,917          23,434 43%                517 
         1005136 Hardware               1,900                  792               969 51%                178 
         1005177 Technology/Website               2,000                  833                 40 2%               (793)
      Total 10.5100 IT Services  $       173,150  $         72,146  $      84,722 49%      12,576.17 
      1005000 Administrative Services   
         1005101 Audit Fees               9,800               4,083                  -   0%            (4,083)
         1005120 Library Supplies             30,000             12,500          11,343 38%            (1,157)
         1005121 Office Supplies               8,000               3,333            4,779 60%             1,446 
         1005122 Breakroom Supplies               1,500                  625               505 34%               (120)
         1005123 Postage               6,000               2,500            2,183 36%               (317)
         1005124 Hospitality               6,000               2,500               138 2%            (2,362)
         1005131 Accounting and Bookkeeping             15,000               6,250            8,879 59%             2,629 
         1005137 Legal Notices               1,500                  625               372 25%               (253)
         1005138 Delivery Service               7,700               3,208            3,150 41%                 (58)
         1005140 Payroll Services               8,500               3,542            3,387 40%               (155)
         1005150 Liability Insurance Costs             35,000             14,583 
            1005151 Liability Ins. - D & O            6,087 
            1005153 Workers Compensation               668 
            1005154 Liability Insurance          13,793 
         Total 1005150 Liability Insurance Costs             35,000             14,583          20,548 59%             5,964 
         1005170 Utilities   
            1005171 Electricity             45,000 
               1015171 Electricity - Winnetka          25,169 
               1025171 Electricity - Northfield            3,128   
            Total 1005171 Electricity             45,000             18,750          28,297 63%             9,547 
            1005172 Water               5,625 
               1015172 Water - Winnetka                     -              1,030 
               1025172 Water - Northfield               105   
            Total 1005172 Water               5,625               2,344            1,135 20%            (1,209)
            1005173 Storm Sewer               1,900 
               1015173 Storm Sewer - Winnetka               666   
            Total 1005173 Storm Sewer               1,900                  792               666 35%               (126)
            1005174 Natural Gas             11,000 
               1015174 Natural Gas - Winnetka            3,039   
               1025174 Natural Gas - Northfield               215   
            Total 1005174 Natural Gas             11,000               4,583            3,255 30%            (1,329)
            1005175 Telephone               9,250 
               1015175 Telephone - Winnetka            4,278   
            Total 1005175 Telephone               9,250               3,854            4,278 46%                424 
            1005176 Internet Services             16,500               6,875            8,213 50%             1,338 
         Total 1005170 Utilities             89,275             37,198          45,844 51%             8,646 
         1005700 Public Relations   
            1005720 PR E-Marketing               1,500                  625                  -   0%               (625)
            1005721 PR Promotional               6,000               2,500            5,701 95%             3,201 
            1005722 PR Source             25,000             10,417                  -   0%          (10,417)
            1005723 PR Supplies               8,000               3,333            3,071 38%               (263)
            1005724 PR Advertising               3,500               1,458                 31 1%            (1,428)
         Total 1005700 Public Relations             44,000             18,333            8,803 20%            (9,531)

11



Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018

% of 
Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

         1005703 ILL Fees                  150                    63               100 67%                  38 
         1005713 Credit Card Processing Fees                     -                       -                 504 0%                504 
         1005719 Board Expenses               1,000                  417                  -   0%               (417)
         1005731 Memberships               6,500               2,708                (82) -1%            (2,790)
         1005732 Staff Meetings               5,000               2,083               449 9%            (1,635)
         1005734 Staff Recognition                     -                   19                  19 
         1005735 Director's Expenses               1,000                  417               300 30%               (117)
         1005736 Legal             15,000               6,250            1,050 7%            (5,200)
         1005741 Architects                     -              9,352             9,352 
         1005742 Building Appraisal                  500                  208                  -   0%               (208)
         1005743 Other Consultations             15,000               6,250            3,127 21%            (3,123)
         1005744 Investment Fees                     -                       -              1,524 0%             1,524 

         1005745 HR Consultant             50,000             20,833          15,961 32%            (4,872)
      Total 1005000 Administrative Services           356,425           148,510        142,235 40%            (6,276)
      1005100 Personnel   
         1005110 Salaries        1,670,000           695,833        668,073 40%          (27,761)
         1005111 Health Insurance           140,000             58,333          38,308 27%          (20,025)
         1005112 Flu Vaccination                  500                  208                  -   0%               (208)
         1005113 Employee Asst. Program               1,500                  625               113 8%               (513)
         1005114 Conferences             20,000               8,333            4,085 20%            (4,249)
         1005115 Flexible Spending Account               3,000               1,250               113 4%            (1,138)
      Total 1005100 Personnel        1,835,000           764,583        710,690 39%          (53,893)
      1005900 Programming-District Initiative   
         1005308 Summer Reading             11,100               4,625            2,145 19%            (2,480)
         1005716 OBTV             17,000               7,083          12,759 75%             5,675 
         1005907 Programming - Youth             15,500               6,458            4,225 27%            (2,233)
         1005908 Programming - Adult             20,000               8,333          10,410 52%             2,076 
         1005910 Programming - Studio             10,000               4,167                 28 0%            (4,139)
         1005913 Studio General Supplies               7,500               3,125               428 6%            (2,697)

      Total 1005900 Programming-District Initiative             81,100             33,792          29,995 37%            (3,797)
      1015300 Adult Services - Winnetka   
         1015340 Books-Fiction             55,000             22,917          28,863 52%             5,946 
         1015341 Books-Non-Fiction             65,000             27,083          30,482 47%             3,399 
         1015342 Periodicals             28,000             11,667          14,592 52%             2,926 
         1015343 DVDs             37,000             15,417          17,306 47%             1,889 
         1015344 Audio Books             25,000             10,417            9,495 38%               (921)
         1015345 Books-Digital           170,000             70,833          71,743 42%                910 
         1015346 Online Database             95,000             39,583          85,135 90%           45,552 
      Total 1015300 Adult Services - Winnetka           475,000           197,917        257,617 54%           59,700 
      1015400 Youth/Children's Svcs.-Winnetka   
         1015440 Books-Fiction             10,500               4,375            3,805 36%               (570)
         1015441 Books-Non-Fiction, Easy, & JH                   -   
            101544E Books-Easy             13,000               5,417            4,916 38%               (501)
            101544J Books-Jr. High               6,000               2,500            3,847 64%             1,347 
            101544N Books-Non Fiction             12,000               5,000            4,435 37%               (565)

         Total 1015441 Books-Non-Fiction, Easy, & JH             31,000             12,917          13,198 43%                282 
         1015443 DVDs               8,000               3,333            3,477 43%                144 
         1015444 Audio Books               7,000               2,917            2,712 39%               (204)

12



Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018

% of 
Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

         1015445 Music                  400                  167               663 166%                497 

      Total 1015400 Youth/Children's Svcs.-Winnetka             56,900             23,708          23,856 42%                148 
      1025300 Adult Services - Northfield   
         1025340 Books-Fiction-Adult             24,000             10,000            9,955 41%                 (45)
         1025341 Books-Non-Fiction-Adult             12,000               5,000            4,312 36%               (688)
         1025342 Periodicals                     -                       -                 285 #DIV/0!                285 
         1025343 DVDs-Adult             16,000               6,667            6,463 40%               (203)
         1025344 Audio Books-Adult               9,000               3,750            4,256 47%                506 
      Total 1025300 Adult Services - Northfield             61,000             25,417          25,271 41%               (146)
      1025400 Youth/Children's Sv.-Northfield   
         1025440 Books-Fiction-Juv               7,000               2,917            2,512 36%               (405)
         1025441 Books-Non-Fiction, Easy, & JH
            102544E Books-Easy               5,000               2,083            2,143 43%                  60 
            102544J Books-Jr. High               5,500               2,292            1,622 29%               (670)
            102544N Books-Non Fiction               5,000               2,083            1,780 36%               (303)

         Total 1025441 Books-Non-Fiction, Easy, & JH             15,500               6,458            5,546 36%               (913)
         1025443 DVDs-Juv               4,500               1,875            1,555 35%               (320)
         1025444 Audio Books-Juv               5,000               2,083            1,723 34%               (361)
         1025445 Music - Juv                  500                  208               199 40%                   (9)

      Total 1025400 Youth/Children's Sv.-Northfield             32,500             13,542          11,535 35%            (2,007)
      1035800 Capital Outlay   
         1005882 Building           155,000             64,583        134,485 87%           69,902 
         1005884 Equipment/Furniture           400,000           166,667          80,216 20%          (86,451)
         1005885 Computer Equipment             95,000             39,583          43,567 46%             3,984 
      Total 1035800 Capital Outlay           650,000           270,833        258,268 40%          (12,566)
   Total 1000000 Fund 10 General Expenses        3,721,075        1,550,448     1,544,188 41%            (6,260)
Total Expenses        3,721,075        1,550,448     1,544,188 41%            (6,260)
Net Operating Income           257,924           107,468        350,835 136%         243,366 

13



Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Building Fund

July, 2018 - June, 2019

Full Year
Prorated Through      
November 2018 November 2018 % of Budget

 Variance 
vs. 

Prorated 
Budget 

Income
   0004000 Property Taxes Collections   
      7004000 BEF-Property Taxes  $             150,000  $                62,500  $                70,148 47%  $      7,648 

   Total 0004000 Property Taxes Collections                 150,000                    62,500                    70,148 47%          7,648 
Total Income                 150,000                    62,500                    70,148 47%          7,648 
Expenses
   7005000 Fund 70 Building/Equipment   
      7005725 Janitorial Supplies  $                  8,500  $                  3,542  $                  2,376 28%  $     (1,165)
      7005732 Snow Removal                      8,500                      3,542 0.00  0%         (3,542)
      7005735 Photocopier Leases                    40,000                    16,667 14,999.08  37%         (1,668)
      7005736 Phone Lease                      9,600                      4,000 3,999.90  42%                (0)

      7005737 Building Maintenance Service                  111,440                    46,433 35,350.00  32%       (11,083)
      7005738 Elevators                      8,000                      3,333 3,911.06  49%              578 
      7005739 Landscaping                    15,000                      6,250 2,283.87  15%         (3,966)
      7005752 HVAC                    12,000                      5,000 0.00  0%         (5,000)
      7005755 Automatic Doors                      3,500                      1,458 4,222.28  121%          2,764 
      7005756 Roof                         600                         250 0.00  0%            (250)
      7005758 Alarms                      2,750                      1,146 1,635.00  59%              489 
      7005782 Equipment                      4,000                      1,667 371.31  9%         (1,295)
      7005799 Misc Services                    16,000                      6,667 875.00  5%         (5,792)
      7025159 Northfield Lease                    64,898                    27,041 41,960.43  65%        14,920 

   Total 7005000 Fund 70 Building/Equipment                 304,788                 126,995                 111,984 37%      (15,011)
Total Expenses                 304,788                 126,995                 111,984 37%      (15,011)
Net Operating Income                (154,788)                  (64,495)                  (41,837) 27%        15,011 
Net Income                (154,788)                  (64,495)                  (41,837) 27%        15,011 

November 2018 - 41%

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

14



Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Budget vs. Actuals: 2018 Budget - FY18 P&L 

July, 2018 - June, 2019
November 2018 - 41%

Full Year
Prorated Through      
November 2018 November 2018 % of Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated Budget 

Income
   0004000 Property Taxes Collections
      2004000 IF-Property Taxes 90,000$                37,500$                42,089$                47% 4,589$                   
   Total 0004000 Property Taxes Collections 90,000$                37,500$                42,089$                47% 4,589$                   
Total Income 90,000$                37,500$                42,089$                47% 4,589$                   
Gross Profit 90,000$                37,500$                42,089$                47% 4,589$                   
Expenses
   2005100 Fund 20 IMRF Expenses
      2005113 IMRF-Payroll 105,000$              43,750$                56,987$                54% 13,237$                
   Total 2005100 Fund 20 IMRF Expenses 105,000$              43,750$                56,987$                54% 13,237$                
Total Expenses 105,000$              43,750$                56,987$                54% 13,237$                
Net Operating Income (15,000)$               (6,250)$                 (14,898)$               99% (8,648)$                 
Net Income (15,000)$               (6,250)$                 (14,898)$               99% (8,648)$                 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

15



Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Budget vs. Actuals: 2018 Budget - FY18 P&L 

July, 2018 - June, 2019
November 2018 - 41%

Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018 % of Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Income

   0004000 Property Taxes Collections   
      3004000 FF-Property Taxes  $           20,000  $       8,333  $           9,353 47%  $             1,020 
   Total 0004000 Property Taxes 
Collections  $           20,000  $       8,333  $           9,353 47%  $             1,020 
Total Income  $           20,000  $       8,333  $           9,353 47%  $             1,020 
Gross Profit  $           20,000  $       8,333  $           9,353 47%  $             1,020 
Expenses
   3005100 Fund 30 FICA   
      3005114 FICA-Payroll  $         125,000  $     52,083  $         49,993 40%  $            (2,091)
   Total 3005100 Fund 30 FICA  $         125,000  $     52,083  $         49,993 40%  $            (2,091)
Total Expenses  $         125,000  $     52,083  $         49,993 40%  $            (2,091)
Net Operating Income  $        (105,000)  $    (43,750)  $        (40,640) 39%  $             3,110 
Net Income  $        (105,000)  $    (43,750)  $        (40,640) 39%  $             3,110 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

16



Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
Budget vs. Actuals: 2018 Budget - FY18 P&L 

July, 2018 - June, 2019
November 2018 - 41%

Full Year

Prorated 
Through      

November 
2018

November 
2018 % of Budget

 Variance vs. 
Prorated 
Budget 

Income
Total Income  $               10  $                 4 0  -1000%                    -   
Gross Profit  $               10  $                 4 $                 0  -1000%                    -   
Expenses

   6005100 Unemployment  $          1,000  $             417 5,038  0%         4,621.33 
Total Expenses  $          1,000  $             417 5,038  0%         4,621.33 
Net Operating Income  $            (990)  $            (413) -5,038  -1000%         4,621.33 
Net Income  $            (990)  $            (413) -5,038  -1000%         4,621.33 

Budget 2018-19 Actual November 2018

17



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   1/7

Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District
CHECK DETAIL
November 2018

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

0001001 Operating Checking - FT

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2458 Carla M. Thorpe -50.00

-50.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2459 Gary Wenstrup R -150.00

-150.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2460 The Alliance For Early 
Childhood

R -90.00

-90.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2461 Communication Revolving Fund R -450.00

-450.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2462 Jeanne Beckman -11.95

-11.95

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2463 Lincolnwood Public Library R -8.99

-8.99

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2464 Highland Park Public Library R -11.97

-11.97

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2465 Glencoe Public Library R -33.10

-33.10

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2466 Glenview Public Library R -9.00

-9.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2467 Evanston Public Library R -4.01

-4.01

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2468 Lake Villa Public Library District R -19.01

-19.01

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2469 Park Ridge Public Library R -19.00

-19.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2470 Crystal Lake Public Library -12.00

-12.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2471 Wilmette Public Library District R -32.58

-32.58

18



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   2/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2472 Lake Forest Public Library R -165.00

-165.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2473 LACONI -100.00

-100.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2474 McHenry Public Library -61.94

-61.94

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2475 Illinois Library Association R -300.00

-300.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2476 SASI R -300.00

-300.00

11/02/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2477 Susan K. Klock R -37.09

-37.09

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF 
ILLINOIS

R -849.00

-849.00

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH ANTHONY SCOPELLITI 
LANDSCAPING, INC.

R -945.00

-945.00

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH DE LAGE LANDEN 
FINANCIALSVCS.

R -698.25

-698.25

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING R -102.71

-102.71

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH ASSA ABLOY Entrance 
Systems US Inc.

R -848.98

-848.98

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH EMILY COMPTON-DZAK R -180.94

-180.94

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH AMANDA GARRITY R -41.99

-41.99

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH NAOMI WOLFSON. R -46.63

-46.63

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH STEPHANIE GIRARDI. R -78.87

-78.87

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH ANNA JAICH-WESTINE. R -23.11

-23.11

19



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   3/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD U.S. Postal Service -100.00

-100.00

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH QUILL CORPORATION R -63.34

-63.34

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH Alison Phillips R -174.65

-174.65

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS. R -16.00

-16.00

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH FIRST COMMUNICATIONS R -475.01

-475.01

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH RAILS R -82.50

-82.50

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH DE LAGE LANDEN 
FINANCIALSVCS.

R -665.00

-665.00

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) EFT BIBLIOTHECA, LLC R -70.00

-70.00

11/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD NICOR R -57.93

-57.93

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH COOPERATIVE COMPUTER 
SERVICES

R -6,862.57

-6,862.57

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION R -2,141.25

-2,141.25

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH VILLAGE OF WINNETKA R -10,388.75

-10,388.75

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH BAKER & TAYLOR R -3,189.66

-3,189.66

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MIDWEST TAPE Customer #2000007094 - 
Library Materials

R -1,856.62

-1,856.62

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD R -10,168.79

-10,168.79

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MIDWEST TAPE Customer #2000007094 - 
Library Materials

R -4,153.20

20



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   4/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

-4,153.20

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH BAKER & TAYLOR R -5,279.24

-5,279.24

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH 3 Points, LLC R -5,000.00

-5,000.00

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH NewsBank R -1,957.00

-1,957.00

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH DIGITAL INSURANCE, INC. R -37.50

-37.50

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD R -5,297.83

-5,297.83

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) Illinois Department of 
Employment Security

-5,038.00

-5,038.00

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2479 GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL 
SERVICES

R -799.98

-799.98

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2480 Quench USA, Inc. R -204.00

-204.00

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) EFT VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD R -10,168.79

-10,168.79

11/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH OVERDRIVE INC. R -744.48

-744.48

11/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MERCHANTS DELIVERY 
SERVICE

R -648.00

-648.00

11/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH 22ND CENTURY MEDIA, LLC R -343.08

-343.08

11/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH TODAY'S BUSINESS 
SOLUTIONS INC.

R -394.70

-394.70

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH VILLAGE OF NORTHFIELD R -5,297.83

-5,297.83

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MIDWEST TAPE Customer #2000007094 - 
Library Materials

R -3,132.50

-3,132.50

21



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   5/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH BAKER & TAYLOR R -6,901.71

-6,901.71

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR 
CORP.

R -1,770.53

-1,770.53

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH 3 Points, LLC R -2,266.00

-2,266.00

11/15/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2436 Cheryl Rich Heisler -175.00

-175.00

11/16/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2481 U.S. Postal Service R -722.91

-722.91

11/16/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2482 Apple Inc. R -1,049.00

-1,049.00

11/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH BIBLIOTHECA, LLC R -70.00

-70.00

11/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING R -531.49

-531.49

11/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH OVERDRIVE INC. R -1,193.86

-1,193.86

11/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION R -1,187.50

-1,187.50

11/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH NATALIE A. ROCHE R -23.50

-23.50

11/20/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD CALL ONE R -403.33

-403.33

11/21/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD First Bankcard R -7,035.44

-7,035.44

11/23/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH BAKER & TAYLOR R -3,186.71

-3,186.71

11/23/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH MIDWEST TAPE Customer #2000007094 - 
Library Materials

R -1,579.92

-1,579.92

11/23/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH COOPERATIVE COMPUTER 
SERVICES

R -6,862.57

-6,862.57

22



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   6/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

11/23/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH DE LAGE LANDEN 
FINANCIALSVCS.

R -1,614.63

-1,614.63

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2483 AT&T (Phone Service) -443.32

-443.32

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2484 Belinda W. Potoma -50.00

-50.00

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2485 Carol Mackey -350.00

-350.00

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2487 Christine Thornton -300.00

-300.00

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2488 De Marr Sealcoating Inc. -400.00

-400.00

11/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2489 Ivan Figueredo -210.00

-210.00

1001001 GF - Operating Checking - FT

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH Batteries Plus LLC R -60.68

-60.68

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD COMCAST R -254.85

-254.85

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH QUILL CORPORATION R -63.34

-63.34

11/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD Deluxe Business System R -91.03

-91.03

11/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD NORTH SHORE GAS R -699.83

-699.83

11/06/2018 Bill Payment (Check) EFT NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 
SOLUTIONS

R -1,006.00

-1,006.00

11/09/2018 Bill Payment (Check) ACH AV Techsource, Inc. R -9,477.09

-9,477.09

11/13/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD COMCAST R -237.85

-237.85

23



  Wednesday, December 5, 2018 05:50 PM GMT-8   7/7

DATE TRANSACTION TYPE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

11/21/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD VILLAGE OF WINNETKA R -4,157.11

-4,157.11

11/28/2018 Bill Payment (Check) DD COMED R -435.14

-435.14

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2501 Aqua Chill of Chicago -37.00

-37.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2494 Brian Michalski -195.00

-195.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2502 Eric M. Lancy -50.00

-50.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2495 The Lakota Group, Inc. -3,126.58

-3,126.58

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2496 Third Chapter Partners, LLC. -8,400.00

-8,400.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2497 Tom Tubekis -640.00

-640.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2498 Zabinski Consulting Services, 
Inc,

-1,250.00

-1,250.00

11/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 2503 Communication Revolving Fund -450.00

-450.00

24



Library Director’s Report and Staff Activities 
for the December 10, 2018 Board Meeting 

 
Impact Story 
A patron came to the library with his own laptop, he expressed that he was embarrassed to ask me for help saving his 
Power Point presentation to a portable memory stick. I assured him that it was nothing to be embarrassed about, I 
would be happy to show him how it is done. He was so relieved, explaining to me he was asked to do a presentation and 
to make a slideshow, which he had never done before but had figured it out nicely. The hard part came when he had to 
save it to portable stick.  
He then said he was worried that the font was not big enough to see on the big screen. I offered to show him how it 
would look on our projector screen which would be similar to the screen used for his presentation. He was so thrilled 
and was more at ease. We went over slideshow mode and how to make the slides go forward. He left very cheerful and 
with so much more confidence that his presentation would go well. He was very appreciative that the library had the 
equipment and the expertise to help him in his profession. ---Erin Collins, Librarian 
 
Financial Report  
The revenues are slightly above what was anticipated with total revenues at 48%.  

• The liability insurance costs have been moved into the general fund as per our change in the audit. 
• There is a correction pending to the classification of OCLC and CCS accounts. We pay them to the same vendor, 

but the GLs are different. This will be corrected.  
 
Building and Grounds 
We are wrapping up the initial patio feedback process. We have not had any other additional comments come in from 
our last discussion in November. I will be in contact with Lakota Group about next steps.   
 
Staff Training and Personnel Updates:  
We are excited to offer three newly created Librarian II positions. We are offering these positions first to our internal 
staff as we are confident that we have a team that can take on these new roles and excel. Applications for internal 
candidates are due in December, with interviews projected in early January. 
 
The librarian role is evolving. Only a few short years ago the maker movement forever changed our District, challenging 
staff to grow their skill sets and offering innovative services to the community. The district continued improving with a 
new service model, made possible by training and promoting Clerk staff to Associates who partner with our librarians at 
centralized services points. With the creation of these new Librarian II roles we will be changing our current structure 
and in so doing creating new opportunities for growth both professionally and with our services Districtwide.  
These positions are opportunities for growth for those who would like to expand into new roles and who seek new 
responsibilities and challenges. We see these roles as an opportunity to craft a new path forward for our District and 
expand our ability to bring new and expanding services to our community.  
 
Job Identification: Programming Specialist Librarian II  
Purpose of Work: The Programming Specialist develops, plans, coordinates, assists with the execution, and evaluates 
programs for all ages District-wide based on analytical data. They also lead large scale programs and events that involve 
multiple departments. This position also assists patrons of all ages at public service desks.  
   
Job Identification: Adult Collection Development Librarian II  
Purpose of Work: The Adult Collection Development Librarian is responsible for assuring high patron satisfaction with all 
aspects of Library collections in all formats for ages 18 plus. The Adult Collection Development Librarian supports the 
goals of the Library in accordance with current policies and procedures, and coordinates effectively with relevant 
departments to effectively maintain Adult collections throughout the district. This position also assists patrons of all ages 
at public service desks.  
 
Job Identification: Youth Collection Development Librarian II  
Purpose of Work: The Youth Collection Development Librarian is responsible for assuring high patron satisfaction with all 

25



Library Director’s Report and Staff Activities 
for the December 10, 2018 Board Meeting 

 
aspects of Library collections in all formats for ages 0-18. The Youth Collection Development Librarian supports the goals 
of the Library in accordance with current policies and procedures, and coordinates with relevant departments to 
effectively maintain Youth collections throughout the district. This position also assists patrons of all ages at public 
service desks.  
 
Per Capita Requirement Met: provide access to one free online resource focusing on safety in the library. 
The Public Library Association has a free on-demand webinar entitled Violence Prevention in the Public Library. The link 
to the webinar was shared with all staff, as well as an offer to coordinate a shared listen of the program at the library. 
Program Description 
As free, public institutions, libraries welcome all. This founding principle is a wonderful quality; however it can also leave 
staff vulnerable to encountering difficult and sometimes dangerous individuals. This on-demand webinar discusses 
violence risk factors in terms of both customers and employees and helps enhance situational awareness skills. Learn 
about warning signs—verbal and non-verbal behaviors—of risk and potential aggression; as well as verbal diffusion 
strategies and actions to prepare for and react to active shooter incidents. Learn how to keep you, your colleagues, and 
your customers safe. 
 
Circulation Services 
Total circulation for the month of November FY 2018/2019 was 41,286 compared to 33,397 for the same month last 
year. This represents a net change of 23.62 % 
 
Cumulative circulation through November FY 2018/2019 is 251,890 compared to 171,397 for the previous fiscal year to 
date. This represents a net change of 46.96 %. 
 
Virtual Branch circulation for the month of November FY 2018/2019 was 4,876 compared to 3,178 for the same month 
last year. 
This represents a net change of 53.43 %. 
 
Cumulative virtual branch circulation through November FY 2018/2019 is 21,224 compared to 16,136 for the previous 
fiscal year to date. This represents a net change of 31.53 %. 
 
Selfcheck % at Winnetka November 2018:  65.16% 
 
Technology 
Computer Usage 
There were 1,050 public computer sessions at Winnetka with 48 percent of those occurring on laptops.   
There were 531 public computer sessions at Northfield with 3.5 percent of those occurring on laptops. 
There were 33 Chromebook sessions in the Youth Services department.  
 
Winnetka had 16,933 recorded hotspot sessions from 2051 distinct devices.  The average session time was 39 minutes.  
These sessions used a total of 352 GB of downstream bandwidth and 88 GB of upstream bandwidth.  
 
Northfield had 5,337 hotspot sessions from 955 distinct devices.  The average session time was 46 minutes.  These 
sessions used a total of about 255 GB of downstream bandwidth and about 40 GB of upstream bandwidth. 
 
Website: Most Visited Pages 
Home Page |  Patio Project |Movies | All Research A – Z | digital-library/ebooks-eaudiobooks| Digital – NYT 
 
We had 8,958 web sessions with 5,619 unique website users as counted by Google Analytics. 
 
Study Room Usage 

26



Library Director’s Report and Staff Activities 
for the December 10, 2018 Board Meeting 

 
 

  
Bookings Summary 

 

Unique Users 101 
Total Bookings 195 
Time Available 49,680 
Time Booked 22,365 
Average Booking Duration 115 
User Showed Up - Yes 171 
User Showed Up - No 2 

 
Programs and Activities 
Outreach 
On October 19th, Amanda Garrity presented to the Student Service Club at Sunset Ridge School about libraries and 
literacy; she also promoted eBooks, eAudiobooks, and databases, talked about volunteer opportunities, and promoted 
the Studio makerspace and Library programs. 
 
Program Attendance 
October corrected (issue with youth services entry) 
Total District Program Attendance for the month of October FY 2018/2019 was 1,805 compared to 1,788 for the same 
month last year. 
This represents a net change of 0.95 % 
Cumulative District Program Attendance through October FY 2018/2019 is 5,981 compared to 6,021 for the same month 
last year. 
This represents a net change of -0.66 % 
 
November 
Total District Program Attendance for the month of November FY 2018/2019 was 1,277 compared to 1,310 for the same 
month last year. 
This represents a net change of -2.52 % 
Cumulative District Program Attendance through November FY 2018/2019 is 7,258 compared to 7,331 for the same 
month last year. 
This represents a net change of -1.00 % 

 
Current 
Month 

Same 
Month 
Last FY 

Percent 
Change Current FY 

Last FY to 
Date 

Percent 
Change 

27



Library Director’s Report and Staff Activities 
for the December 10, 2018 Board Meeting 

 
Adult Program Count - 
Winnetka 33 29 13.79% 103 95 8.42% 

Adult Program Attendance - 
Winnetka 350 353 -0.85% 1,135 1,333 -14.85% 

Youth Program Count - 
Winnetka 41 40 2.50% 150 143 4.90% 

Youth Program Attendance - 
Winnetka 895 969 -7.64% 2,943 3,063 -3.92% 

Adult Program Count - 
Northfield 11 15 -26.67% 35 42 -16.67% 

Adult Program Attendance - 
Northfield 116 146 -20.55% 351 421 -16.63% 

Youth Program Count - 
Northfield 29 25 16.00% 111 96 15.63% 

Youth Program Attendance - 
Northfield 444 320 38.75% 1,552 1,204 28.90% 

 
Programming Highlights 

• Tinker Time was attended by 22 patrons. Sheila Cody, Head of Youth Services and Natalie Roche, Youth Library 
Assistant led an interactive family tinker session to demonstrate Ozobot, Makey Makey, Oculus Go, Snap 
Circuits, and more. 

• Painting Landscapes with Pastels was attended by 26  patrons. Participants created landscapes using pastels 
with artist Frances Vail. 

• Gustav Klimt and the Woman in Gold was attended by 35 patrons. Art historian Dr. Michelle Mishur discussed 
important examples of Klimt’s work including The Kiss and The Portrait of Adele Bloch-Bauer (aka “The Woman 
in Gold”). She also placed Klimt within the historical context of late nineteenth century French painting including 
the Impressionist, Post-Impressionist and Symbolist movements. 

• Jewelry Workshop was attended by 10 patrons. Librarian Erin Collins taught participants how to create a unique 
piece of jewelry using a variety of beads and other jewelry supplies. 
 

Communications and Marketing 
We are working on long-term planning for The Source and promotional campaigns in our short break before we start the 
spring issue just after the New Year. We have been mapping out covers and potential topics to highlight in each issue. 
The Patron Point software switch is getting started. We are anxious to get things moving. Our next step is to connect the 
Polaris system and current contact lists for email authentication. We are also starting to develop content for the 
welcome emails, which will highlight some of the many services that are offered free with the WNPLD library card. 
Finals week is coming in January, and we are working with the Youth/Teen staff in prepping for some fun (small) 
giveaways and potentially a survey for our teens. We are also busy working on program promotion and looking ahead to 
plan out our promotional products for the year.  
 

28



���������	
����������	��	���������������������������	
����������� ����� !"���#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ ,-./0- 1.,2, /34--�5 22./62 76.,3, /0480�5�*��+�(�������� 2.3,3 7.7/7 /3487�5 6-.1,0 /7.66- /3433�5�*��+�(���������� 7.327 6.0/0 /7410�5 /7.7,1 ,1.16, /8430�5!�"�����+�(��� 1/0 1/1 9-4,/�5 7.023 7.201 6418�5#� ����� /-0 ,12 ,,418�5 0/8 ,.-,19/1468�5)����:�� /,, /-3 /476�5 ,./-, ,.,76 24-0�5�;��*��(��� 3.8/2 7.12/ 7/40/�5 63.7/6 /7.7/, 784,2�5#�<�=��	 //, ,,, 884,-�5 ,.-7, 361 364,0�5>�?	� 6- 6, 964/6�5 83 /2093/432�5�	���>�� ,.-33 /.28/921410�5 2.1-6 ,,.86092,468�5����� ��@ABA �C@�BC �C$B��& ��B@��D �C@B�B ��$C��&�
����?#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ ,6.788 ,-.120 /7466�5 0,.078 23.373 /3433�5�*��+�(�������� ,,.20- 8.727 //461�5 3,.817 78.1-2 /7472�5�*��+�(���������� ,.8/8 ,.7-6 60478�5 8.032 3.17, 7/407�5!�"�����+�(��� ,/1 87 634,0�5 3,8 270 ,64,3�5#� ����� ,// 10 7-4/6�5 33- 3/, 34/1�5)����:�� /0- /63 ,747,�5 ,.770 ,.777 -4/,�5�;��*��(��� 6.,27 ,.8/6 374-,�5 ,2.6-/ 8.,/0 30433�5#�<�=��	 9 / 9 , 0 9>�?	� 68 379684-3�5 ,86 63,973427�5�	���>�� ������ �A@��� �E@�C� ��$A��& ��@�A� C�@ADC E�$�A�&FGHIJKLMNO�PQNMLH�RSQTG�ULM�NOG�VLHNO�LU�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�KQS��@DA�$]NGVS�YLMMLKĜ�UMLV�LNOGM�JIYMQMIGS�ULM�NOG�VLHNO�LU�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�KQS��@B�B4_LNQJ�̀IM̀RJQNILH�ULM�NOG�VLHNO�LU�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�KQS�D�@�DB�̀LVPQMĜ�NL�EE@E�A�ULM�NOG�SQVG�VLHNO�JQSN�aGQM4�_OIS�MGPMGSGHNS�Q�HGN�̀OQHTG�LU��B$E��&bRVRJQNIXG�̀IM̀RJQNILH�NOMLRTO�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�IS���C@DA��̀LVPQMĜ�NL��A�@E�A�ULM�NOG�PMGXILRS�UIS̀QJ�aGQM�NL�̂QNG4�_OIS�MGPMGSGHNS�Q�HGN�̀OQHTG�LU��C$E��&4c���	�+��%������ !"���#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ 3.28, 2./20 /2461�5 62.20- /0.236 /84-2�5�*��+�(�������� 6.,,/ /.787 /7401�5 ,0.7-- ,6.0,, /348,�5�*��+�(���������� 6.708 /.036 /248,�5 ,1.,0- ,6.12/ 6,4,0�5!�"�����+�(��� 707 71, 9,473�5 /.133 /.000 64/-�5#� ����� 0- ,//97/43/�5 73- 2109/,437�5)����:�� ,20 ,22 ,4/8�5 888 8,8 140,�5�;��*��(��� 7.3-7 6./60 7/4/6�5 /7.208 ,2.0// 23467�5#�<�=��	 ,-/ 0- 7240,�5 283 7-2 704,3�5>�?	� 6- /7 /24--�5 11 /,29284-0�5�	���>�� 01, ,.768972406�5 7.,,2 0.2-/9724,2�5����� ��@��� ��@A�B ��$AA�& C�@�AE BB@C�� �D$E��&�
����?#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ 8.122 0.,7, 614-,�5 2-.811 68.088 /14,,�5�*��+�(�������� 1.371 3.660 63470�5 77.081 62.2/7 /34,,�5�*��+�(���������� ,./-0 1-7 2-4,/�5 3.,8- 7./02 7741-�5!�"�����+�(��� 13 2, 31436�5 770 621 /7413�5#� ����� 1, 73 034-8�5 7-/ 672 ,342/�5)����:�� ,87 ,07 ,,478�5 ,.,,, ,.,-7 -436�5�;� ,.881 ,.,13 31470�5 8.360 2.078 30436�5#�<�=��	 9 9 9 , /92-4--�5>�?	� 62 22963463�5 ,38 6-3977400�5�	���>�� ������ ��@�D� �@CBE D�$BC�& C�@ABB DA@CCE E�$CC�&dIHHGNeQ�fIYMQMagS�̀IM̀RJQNILH�ULM�NOG�VLHNO�LU�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�KQS��B@�B��̀LVPQMĜ�NL���@DE��ULM�NOG�SQVG�VLHNO�JQSN�aGQM4�_OIS�MGPMGSGHNS�Q�HGN�̀OQHTG�LU���$���&4����?�	�"�%������ !"���#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ 6.308 /.187 /04,6�5 ,8.332 ,2.281 /34-0�5�*��+�(�������� /.2-7 ,.86- /8407�5 ,6.7,0 ,-.3,8 /3462�5�*��+�(���������� ,.,02 837 /,418�5 3./71 7.808 /2478�5!�"�����+�(��� 626 670 ,406�5 ,.18- ,.1-, 7487�5#� ����� ,60 36,,0473�5 /38 76,960428�5)����:�� 27 2, 2411�5 /-/ //7 9841/�5�;� /.6/, ,.3,2 7640/�5 ,,.177 1.388 634,2�5#�<�=��	 ,,8 7,,8-4/7�5 772 /66 8-488�5>�?	� 9 0 9 1 7/91-482�5�	���>�� 0/7 ,.7/, 9784-2�5 6.86, 0.7,6973480�5����� C@CCE B@��� E�$A��& ED@E�E �A@��� �C$���&�
����?#��	���� ����	��#�$����� ���	�#�$%� ���	�� #�$�&�'���( ��������	 )�	���� ��������	 ���&�'���(*��+ 6.377 6.0,3 /64/6�5 /-.03, ,3.170 /64/6�5�*��+�(�������� /.8// 6.,,0 934/3�5 ,0.,13 ,7./1, /-467�5�*��+�(���������� 0// 288 /-426�5 6.202 /.233 6846/�5!�"�����+�(��� 7/ 76 9/466�5 ,0/ ,18 91488�5#� ����� 7, 7, -4--�5 /21 /03 9342/�5)����:�� 03 3/ //421�5 663 67- 9,4,1�5�;��*��(��� ,.,23 060 23412�5 2.332 6.601 3040-�5#�<�=��	 9 / 9 9 2 9>�?	� 7 8922423�5 /7 22923463�5�	���>�� ������ D@�CE D@C�� A$CC�& �A@��C ��@��� ��$�B�&WLMNOUIGĴ�fIYMQMagS�̀IM̀RJQNILH�ULM�NOG�VLHNO�LU�WLXGVYGM�Z[�/-,1\/-,8�KQS���@C�C�̀LVPQMĜ�NL��@C���ULM�NOG�SQVG�VLHNO�JQSN�aGQM4�_OIS�MGPMGSGHNS�Q�HGN�̀OQHTG�LU���$AB�&4

29



��������	��
������������
��	��������
����������
�������� ����������������������������  ��!����� "��#���� ��!�����  ���������$%&&' $%())))*(&�+ $'%('$ ,%-.$)(*(/�+� ��0����1��������
����������
�������� ����������������������������  ��!����� "��#���� ��!�����  ���������$%$($ .,&/.*$2�+ 2%2.& -%&,,-&*,&�+� ��3�4�
������
����������
�������� ����������������� �����������  ��!����� "��#���� ��!�����  ���������$%/(( ()2$-/*2(�+ /%'-) -%'.&-'*&2�+�����������
����������
�������� ����������������� �����������  ��!����� "��#���� ��!�����  ���������$,) (,$(.*(2�+ .$2 -2-$')*22�+� ���������
����������
�������� ����������������������������  ��!����� "��#���� ��!�����  ���������.. ./ /*'2�+ )&. -/25$-*&$�+6789:;<�=8;>?@�?78?:<;97A>�BA8�9@C�DA>9@�AB�EAFCDGC8�HI�)'$,J)'$&�K;L�MNOPQ�?ADR;8CS�9A�TNUPO�BA8�9@C�L;DC�DA>9@�<;L9�VC;8*�W@7L�8CR8CLC>9L�;�>C9�?@;>XC�AB�YT�MT��*Z:D:<;97FC�F789:;<�G8;>?@�?78?:<;97A>�9@8A:X@�EAFCDGC8�HI�)'$,J)'$&�7L�[UN[[M�?ADR;8CS�9A�UQNUTQ�BA8�9@C�R8CF7A:L�B7L?;<�VC;8�9A�S;9C*�W@7L8CR8CLC>9L�;�>C9�?@;>XC�AB�TU�YT��*

30



���������	
���
������
����
���������� ����
��
���� �����
��� ����������
���� �������� �! "��#�$�
 %������"��#�$�
 "������ �!%��������
� &'()* *+')),-*&.*/�0 1*'22& 3,'+&1-,1.,1�0�4��	�5��
���� &2) &*2 ,./,�0 1'/,) 2')21 -1./*�0�
���� 1** ,2/ *1./)�0 +',), *'*(1 &3.*(�06������ + 2-3).))�0 +2 +) +2.))�0%��������

����	 *2, **3 ,*.&)�0 *'+// *'11&-**.**�0�
���
7��
���� �����
��� ����������
������������ �! "��#�$�
 %������"��#�$�
 "����� �!%��������
� ��4��	�5��
���� 3+( 322 -1.+(�0 ,'+&1 ,'1+)-,.3/�0�
���� �6������ �%��������

����	 /+* (() 3.3+�0 ,'(31 ,'/,,-*./)�0�

#�
��6����#�
��89:;<<9=::><<?8:>@��
74����������� ����
��
���� �����
��� ����������
���� �������� �! "��#�$�
 %������"��#�$�
 "������ �!%��������
� 3'(,/ 3'(3/ -).11�0 +)')// ,1'&+2-1+.1/�0�4��	�5��
���� *'++( &(( +2.2&�0 2'&31 1'/(/ ++.+3�0%��������

����	 2, /(-,&.)/�0 1)1 2)/-+).1(�0� ���
7��
���� �����
��� ����������
���� �������� �! "��#�$�
 %������"��#�$�
 "������ �!%��������
� ��4��	�5��
���� *2( *)& 11.)1�0 (++ 2//++.(&�0%��������

����	 +2) ,,(-+2./+�0 *'/)+ *'21**3.&1�0�#�
��6����#�
��A9:BC<9BC>B;BD�EFEGH�FI�8CA�JFHKL�MNON�PHGQNK�IFO�PGEOFRL�SR�EJN�TFREJ�FI�UFVNTWNO�XY�+)*/Z+)*&.[JNON�MNON�G�EFEGH�FI�C98=C�MNWLSEN�LNLLSFRL�SR�EJN�TFREJ�FI�UFVNTWNO�XY�+)*/Z+)*&.[FEGH�\SLEOSQE�]OF̂OGT�DEENRKGRQN�IFO�EJN�TFREJ�FI�UFVNTWNO�XY�+)*/Z+)*&�MGL�<9?::�QFTPGONK�EF�<9B<;�IFO�EJN�LGTN�TFREJ�HGLE�_NGO.�[JSL�ONPONLNREL�G�RNE�QJGR̂N�FI�!?�=?��àTaHGESVN�\SLEOSQE�]OF̂OGT�DEENRKGRQN�EJOFâJ�UFVNTWNO�XY�+)*/Z+)*&�SL�:9?=C�QFTPGONK�EF�:9BB<�IFO�EJN�LGTN�TFREJ�HGLE�_NGO.�[JSL�ONPONLNREL�G�RNE�QJGR̂N�FI�!<�;;��

31



を 重 量 二) くの は; 山 凸 i書と ○ l細 く9 Z く〔 エ ○ �の �罵 ���8 �富 ま 1‾ 窒 

量 ト �くづ ���ぐう 卜● ���トー 

くつ ;〕 ⊂l し山 凸 �宮 ���総 

の 之 皇 〇〇 〇 亡) "く �、、-ヽ--. ���軍 。 

.」 害 ト 語 持 彊 �墨 の 毒 害 �て) 董 くく 蔦 〔⊃ �くo �筆 2 

倉 

室 ∈ 二】 之 �ヽ‾ 

8
.
e
∴
∴
∴
∽

寸
の
.
N
①
の
す
卜
　
の

調
面
.
潟
。
纂
据
こ
∴
∽

亀
.
∞
-
卜
。
遠
.
↑
　
∽

8
.
e
∴
∴
∴
暢

°
C
i
∞
葛
卜
“
丈
藩
こ
　
の

。
C
.
の
す
卜
●
寸
8
こ
　
の

」
割
判
轡
剥
千
言

8
.
ぐ
の
〇
一
8
ト
ー
「
　
∽

S
山
0
<
d
「
山
○
○
山
e
く
さ

・
〕
○
空
)
u
○
○
掌
こ
の
呈
っ
」
合
o
雲
u
°
°
士
°
烹
王
室
0
0
妄
」
o
幽
岬
官
主
の
°
}
8
苛
っ
督
d

山
の
<
重
く
ト
山
瞭
S
⊃
」
d
士
S
≡
一
山
〇
十
山
o
之
千
一
<
出
.
①

山
つ
き
ト
之
山
葦
>
<
d
ト
之
山
叱
正
⊃
○
“
∞

電
蓮
華
8
」
○
且
E
O
と
①
登
コ
)
十
三
山
≡
>
<
d

∝
○
山
S
山
ト
<
〇
一
山
千
飯
山
O
S
⊃
〇
一
>
山
は
岩
S
S
山
」
.
卜

合
さ
ト
S
〇
三
の
登
寸
重
工
)

山
の
<
重
く
ト
山
は
S
S
山
」
合
山
之
吐
く
山
」
<
ト
〇
十
.
り

(
q
s
+
鰐
登
一
」
)
鵠
望
逗
む
は
-
巾
も
ト

.
o
っ
p
重
さ
一
三
容
○
よ

量
る
亡
S
宣
誓
を
調
整
三
馬
…
○
○
春
雪
e
.
○
○
…
6
o
雪
雲
雷
電
>
-
○
董
里
○
∈
≧
邑
p
こ
田
も
っ
遜

○
参
事
萎
o
急
き
の
き
8
睾
8
S
つ
o
一
>
o
己
童
亡
主
こ
史
盲
o
事
き
き
で
琶
8
0
妄
合
憲
星

u
8
q
o
>
皇
些
与
○
∈
e
焉
〕
哩
奉
.
$
5
∈
尋
○
○
で
藍
に
。
○
○
重
責
享
8
雷
の
里
o
8
寄
u
毛
o
重
d
∈
8

u
o
室
縛
三
着
重
畳
」
慶
に
○
電
8
】
喜
s
毒
舌
p
o
$
>
8
苫
o
事
0
童
重
要
p
霧
u
O
罵
∈
慶
に
-

“
邑
冨
言
o
な
ま
し
o
-
○
空
電
8
0
重
さ
〕
の
室
〇
番
合
着
手
淫
調
重
8
室
○
重
り
8
点
善
言
宅
に
コ
○
声

冨
病
害
罵
…
写
°
O
u
O
山
u
∈
つ
一
〇
〇
)

重
吉
宕
重
言
蚤
○
窃
場
○
求
-
〇
十
i
.
q

(
}
①
輩
S
c
室
雪
害
⊆
○
○
g
O
山
十
〇
u
∈
コ
一
8
)

三
〇
M
B
董
d
E
8
場
o
雲
量
馬
>
.
e

‥
山
①
<
重
く
「
山
は
.
S

富
里
S
霊
コ
鼻
u
〇
〇
年
°
O
u
∈
つ
一
〇
〇
)

山
ト
<
○
○
ト
ロ
山
は
〇
十
S
傷
口
山
喜
山
」
容
茎
○
○
」
<
ト
○
○
.
寸

(
N
・
「
十
l
聖
二
)
山
ト
く
合
○
ト
∑
⊃
S
十
〇
く
叱
ト
之
O
?
e

嬰
o
せ
o
鼠
u
苫
〇
台
e
空
室
○
輯
之
.
乙

茎
⊃
S
ト
○
<
叱
ト
之
○
○
」
<
三
〇
三
∝
〇
二

・
箪
愛
三
8
0
重
責
∋
u
〇
一
)
豊
吉
O
u
∵
壱
雷
雲
圭
の
総
-
篭
る
妄
圧
至
○
罵
∈
S
三
°
竃
茎
塞
く

ト
Z
山
茎
>
<
d
此
○
山
之
〇
一
ト
<
〇
一
」
d
d
<
S
.
此
〇
十
〇
<
飯
」
之
○
○

‥
山
ト
<
q
十
〇
<
鑑
ト
と
○
○

‥
O
之
十
〇
山
「
〇
倍
さ

S
ト
○
山
十
王
〇
倍
<

○
○
亀
.
8
」
室
童
の
尊
の
　
[
〇
十
〇
〇
-
∝
山
d

卜
　
.
〇
之
一
之
〇
一
十
<
○
-
」
d
d
<

乙
葛
8
」
一
●
○
濡
〇
三
〇

巾
等
の
≡
S
-
u
粒
」
の
」
e
>
山
こ
∞

u
の
】
総
合
十
空
っ
ー
8
三
〇
し
く
}
°
言
合
d

‥
舌
e
茎
登
く
)
く
-
>

駿
8
曾
d
曇
る
u
O
∝
宰
8

‥
○
○
山
「
o
は
d

‥
∝
O
山
十
〇
<
此
ト
Z
○
○

無
さ
8
」
-
●
u
一
e
面

の
毒
口
」
o
こ
こ
の
は
S
動
で

0
」
」
)
与
之
o
茎
の
e
一
面
亡
の

‥
(
α
〇
〇
〇
く
鑑
〇
三
°
o
)
茎
o
叱
正

鷲
」
一
〇
嵩
圭
一
柄

〕
a
O
占
S
義
き
○
○
の
卜

碧
芸
コ
童
耳
盲
Z
・
鴨
墓
室
u
竜
一

‥
(
峰
山
奮
)
°
ト

ト
Z
山
茎
>
<
d
色
○
山
田
ト
<
〇
一
山
一
十
倍
山
〇
日
Z
<
之
〇
一
十
<
〇
一
」
d
d
<

32



き 之 密 告 豊 . , § 董 呂 冨 寓 ii ⊂ ○ 富 岳 主 蜜 .合 っ て? o 葦 〇 号 空 も とこ 王 手 �号 琵 ���患8鰐軍籍霊8電探∴罵88軍　軍軍詳　串　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　葛 �紘 く1つ や ト一 〇 〇 くゴ 

蔓詰弼詫鵡　霊占う○　○謹皇苧 
き∬ふきこびこ高薄　さ　　　　宰こ-　董 

田　山 ���8害8888888　雪害8写　畠8昌軍　害 

博 ���ごく占うきくうう占うd　〇〇〇〇　　〇〇〇〇　〇 

工詐 ���888888雲8昌　888革∴革写軍軍∴号 �e ⊂) ⊂) 
きくうちくゴ占占さくうd　占〇〇〇　　〇⊂)口=○　○ 

む 拳奮 ���誉菩誉書巻誉尊書善　書碧菖善　幸きき牽　き �碧 雲 で‾ 
ささ皇室暮雲室暮雲∴室888　8888　8 

輔菖 ���88幕8888霊8∴宗88霊　8号阜軍　需 �(二) く▼つ Co ▼-‾ lヽ」 や e〕 〈o ▼-‾ 

詩講鴇謹衰　露露　詫詳　筆 
薄緑書き轟き暮霜鳥　空こ‾　避 

十線宣 ��� �8 ⊂う 

しu �墨 ○ ○ :∠ 誓 �　合 空合 �罵　　　　888∴喬 �(二) く二) ⊂⊃ 
霊∴∴∴害鳥昌　幸 

壬箇 �き　　　　　き三言∴宮 
(ゝ � 

(⊃ ��垂至苧 �8呂お8888罵8　　888　8 �8 ゐ 卜 ま くo 結露露講義　弼奉呈 
重富〇 ・く �韓轟時商事　お絹お　の 

C) �こ) 山 室掌 ��88お8888畠8∴露8宝8　串阜88　肴 �霊 う で‾ ト一 幕 や 結露露謹霊　薬罵言護誌ミ 
星章 滅 ��露薄綿轟き　壇薄ま　吋三言　窒 

くり �葺 く) 善 書 さ る 左 (と く) ∽ 山 ○ ��くの � 

山 

雪　　　　　　　　　　　雲 
聖　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　書 

○ 

_舌　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　∃ 

喜要　　　　　　　義 
8亡　　　　⊃ 　　　　之 　　　　つ 　　　　く〕 　　　　α: 　　　　鵠 

く〔 �重　宝 �� � 

∽
↑
。
I
ト
「
q
°
「

こ
O
丁
の
悪
さ

の
き
乙
.
。
C
」
登
巨
の
富
め
む
)
晋
u
台
望
こ
塞
く

卜
　
志
q
重
さ
之
U
畠
8
竺
色
<

〕
製
呈
S
∈
°
定
而
っ
与
に
○
○

∞
○
○
乙
《
亀
」
磐
巨
の
宣
O
S
‥
o
ト
軍
o
d

33



∞
の
.
∞
霜
、
○

○
?
い
い
寸

○
○
.
e
山
の
、
○

○
?
の
①
①

○
○
“
い
卜
∞

8
.
乙
H
卜

○
○
。
す
り

(
8
.
等
N
、
白
)

(
8
.
精
①
)

○
○
.
葛
葛
Z
、
m

○
○
.
寸
∞
卜
、
山

○
○
.
∞
N
卜
、
N

○
○
.
①
叫
〇
、
〇
一

〇
乙
.
∞
山
の
、
一

∽
卜
.
い
卜
〇
、
喜

山
e
“
e
録
の
、
乙

8
.
e
山
N
、
一

㌔
卜
.
ト
調
〇
、
N

∞
寸
.
蜜
乙
、
∽

8
.
m
寸
乙
、
一

〇
〇
。
調
古
の
、
卜

○
○
。
○
い
∞

卜
や
.
Z
さ
い

8
.
乙
∞
卜
、
乙

e
?
卜
∞
巾
、
寸

一
己
u
筒
d
〇
〇
時
.
5
u
⊃
こ
こ
く
く
山
善
O
u
の
焉
〕
S
王
p
u
の
モ
モ
…
」

与
る
〕
S
>
s
一
〇
〇
〕
u
8
碧
雲
豊
里
…
e
S
e
一
〇
d
董
∞
u
幸
告
ぎ
霊
地
×
e
へ
乙
)
e
書
き
e
一
d

呈
○
這
p
u
8
一
巳
」
掌
る
〇
〇
号
号
d
O
O
u
馨
っ
U
e
〕
e
」
茎
O
U
e
>
圭
一
<
主
当
事
っ
U
①
〕
①
」
号
o
U

S
〕
e
S
七
〇
」
ぎ
雷
電
十
〇
S
里
O
U
当
馬
u
佃
も
電
u
与
の
千
若

ぜ
E
」
①
d
E
善
茎
∈
M
も
の
∞
e
≡
>
手
写
p
U
宣
∪
°
S
S
<
〕
S
8
一
室
o
空
P
p
<

」
8
p
学
童
-
∽
U
焉
∈
〇
号
e
呈
二
〇
㌻
亡
呈
相
S
」
①
圭
子
-
M
茎

こ
捻
〇
㌢
篤
∈
O
」
場
e
N
一
S
e
一
p
u
e
エ
リ
も
ぎ
里
U

白
8
0
U
U
①
S
細
る
>
〇
倍

ど
の
相
p
」
巳
エ
」
○
○
p
・
〇
号
巾
u
盲
ぎ
巳
で
∪

(
N
)
u
T
‡
∞
u
≡
さ
-
e
‡
S
⊃
8
e
霊
三
〇
二
等
e
S
」
の
〕
S
e
一
d
苦
い
S
意
こ
き
場
。
∈
○
菩
q
e
妄
S
S
ら
し
p
p
の
き
邑
①
鑑

き
事
由
乙
雷
S
E
○
○
鑑
u
王
と
≧
S
毒
≧
握
?
d
°
ト

下
.
の
く
ト
u
°
筆
写
〇
一
山
こ
e
≧
○
]
S
u
o
怪
>
e
∝
S
書
で
の
>

8
葛
三
〇
畠
u
害
ミ
一
望
e
川
串
?
d
♀

亙
q
巾
モ
虐
p
き
°
u
)
p
-
雀
卓
○
之
◎
雪
e
三
貴
に
荘
呈
ご
庭
S
苫
聖
霊
与
軍
営
も
事
盲
…
-
a
ぎ
巳
も
・
8
?
-
S
<

」
の
山
d
8
a
写
し
せ
e
〕
晋
(
z
)
飼
お
里
号
O
p
掌
○
(
一
)
こ
箪
S
要
一
で
害
毒
u
≒
」
○
○
?
一
巻

8
一
馨
し
く
常
吉
毒
害
u
㌫
斐
°
∞
∪
①
d
主
(
N
≡
e
〕
S
u
-
p
u
e
岬
讐
し
っ
∵
∞
8
-
S
<

〕
モ
」
e
d
重
し
e
-
<
里
正
し
合
川
e
-
>
茎
∞
各
号
e
」
合
喜
多
p
容
巳
で
O
S
S
く
∽
韮
山

M
星
山
U

乙
8
群
山
U

乙
○
○
韓
山
∪

製
暮
竜
山
U

Z
8
韓
山
∪

〇
〇
〇
葺
山
∪

蟄

日

割

割

S
①
×
°
q
」
○
○
奮
い
○
?
-
∽
<

呂
〇
一
き
し
る
d
細
る
∞
こ
き
も
一
〇
」
〕
u
8
ぎ
至
当

S
」
o
宣
告
O
」
8
p
〇
号
e
u
七
的
u
呈
∪

}
圭
」
e
d
鴫
苦
る
…
善
事
o
e
∞
e
一
事
∈
o
」
〕
S
〕
S
8
一
筆
○
程
p
で
く

〕
盲
」
e
d
き
ま
掌
u
享
嶋
o
艶
巳
≡
>
∈
O
」
㌫
〕
S
8
一
2
u
O
違
p
p
く

ど
…
e
d
e
書
聖
に
琴
]
e
a
∞
豊
>
∈
〇
七
S
着
S
8
一
2
u
O
遅
p
p
<

}
そ
し
の
d
筒
善
e
…
茎
場
。
あ
き
≡
>
三
〇
〇
七
〇
S
8
-
e
u
O
凌
p
P
く

S
与
る
雪
雲
8
主
も
-
>
望
-
e
差
∈
q
つ
S
書
生
里
面
相
p
高
上
○
〕
∽
u
o
透
>
①
正

也
国
H

p
e
烏
で
e
S
S
<

p
〇
着
曾
山
U
O
S
S
<

o
>
正
二
<

」
e
p
u
空
電
○

≧
O
」
p
U
之

主
∪
ご
u
e
壱
量

子
∪
ご
こ
ら
も
茎

を
∪
ご
岳
も
∑

>
〕
∪
主
旨
も
∑

e
S
○
○
∑
コ

α
S
」
°
茎
コ

a
ご
○
∑
つ

の
S
」
e
茎
コ

p
e
‥
電
機
U
O
S
S
<

p
馨
巳
で
O
S
S
<

p
馨
ま
で
O
S
S
く

つ
e
場
e
七
〇
S
S
<

p
①
l
e
-
U
°
S
い
く

p
e
苫
.
5
o
S
S
<

主
∪
ご
u
e
も
茎

」
の
p
u
誓
書
の
O

M
○
○
p
e
之

p
e
〕
面
で
o
S
S
<

U
S
」
o
∑
コ

」
U
p
u
e
」
種
の
〇

割
捌

〇
〇
〇

N
〇
〇

〇
8

一
8

白
○
○

葛
〇
°

劉
d
劃
u

○
○
.
〇
〇
〇
、
∞
Z
一

蓋
圏
因
圏
里
園
田
東
国
隔
　
壁
隔
回
田
圏
嗣
自
由
圏
同

筆
毒
∵
閣
員
回
顧
圏
圏
日
嗣
は
園
田
陛
日

∞
一
、
〇
的
、
の
○

む
u
翁
u
ま
き
U

主
筆
圭
p
一
塁
u
嘗
o
之
-
調
号
呈
u
-
M

34



○
卜
.
り
録
寸
、
寸
喜
J

8
.
t
∞
〇
、
卜

8
.
〇
い
い

○
○
.
8
∞
、
乙

O
い
.
一
〇
寸

○
○
.
○
○
の
、
m

○
○
.
e
卜
や
、
寸

∞
①
.
①
の
卜

∞
∽
.
Z
工
与
、
乙

∞
の
.
○
○
寸
、
①
一

〇
〇
.
e
ゆ
卜
、
葛

等
.
卜
∞
動
、
乙

○
○
.
M
乙
の
、
葛

○
○
。
易
の
m

○
○
.
e
∞
の
、
一

卜
甲
山
N
卜
、
喜

丁
∞
“
の
卜
m
、
卜

寸
の
“
N
同
山
、
∽

e
一
事
F

与
u
〇
三
㌦
e
p
u
山
e
茎
の
一
き
働
き
吉
凶
息
号
O
U

阜
菖
司
心
音
も
S
⊃
>
茎
e
筆
写
u
8
一
団
司
H

宵
珊
∴
∴
∴
曲
O
U
U

‥
(
p
①
薯
>
o
主
)
で
緋
⊃
」
o
u
幾
u
竜
王
o
U
寺
u
o
茎
と
冨
三
つ
∪

S
一
事
u
°
三
二
〇
に
d
p
①
S
⊃
>
U
u
e
叫
u
竜
U
o
U
一
き
ち
ト

∈
°
畠
p
〕
〇
二
p
u
書
」
の
線
度
p
○
○
相
事
茎
二
箪
昌
一
p
害
上
S
三
三
」

碧
雲
e
U
」
箪
S
聖
d
ぎ
専
一
×
山
e
吉
十
°
一
瞬
o
d
s
査
由
一
e
>
○
∈
登

録
S
登
b
①
は
し
e
u
M
○
○
e
d
捻
こ
三
笠
」
○
て
ら
〕
×
山
号
高
d

S
]
留
S
O
∈
」
の
声
望
毒
葉
山
〕
o
u
〇
号
馨
〇
一
の
せ

芝
電
ト
ー
主
O
個
O
∈
e
合
」
〇
°
一
山

u
°
も
ら
一
〇
S
書
生
」
e
U
∋
茎

ゼ
S
e
合
し
O
p
u
⊃
〕
璽
ト
」
e
∞
窒
e
∑
①
一
q
真
〕
①
p
ち
○
○
d

」
e
吉
聖
出
d
モ
ー
}
u
っ
ま
こ
e
甥
u
一
p
毒
害
-
>
O
」
d

雲
馨
∽
>
s
一
〇
」
∈
o
U
S
S
馨
∪
<
P
u
筒
u
〇
億
∽
三
三
二
e
〕
S
三
二
∞
①
p
一
>
O
よ

ぎ
遅
」
d
雪
空
S
<

∞
u
凌
」
d
雪
空
S
<

望
董
」
d
蜜
竺
S
<

°
∈
〇
〇
三
〇
事
①
S
8
」
∪
雪
面
羊
°
相
も
〕
e
d
ぎ
三
の
U

S
-
聖
の
d
一
望
p
u
g
S
〕
u
馬
d
・
窪
⊥
S
<

窒
∈
つ
一
8
∞
毒
S
~
×
①
〕
8
∪
巨
竜
〇
二
S
8

S
e
-
q
馨
相
e
u
七
山
>
○
○
d
匂
S
u
圭
の
-
q
塞
ぎ
高
一
×
e
a
}
星
章
」
e
場
p
u
三
つ
d
・
里
○
〕
S
〕
S
8

∽
些
o
d
事
忘
三
〇
一
的
こ
章
e
d
掌
j
董
×
①
乙
登
巳
一
d
蓋
で
こ
の
e
>
O
E
e
重

」
e
で
u
空
事
S
O

し
①
で
u
箪
〕
S
O

M
O
」
p
e
之

S
-
u
e
S
u
e
「

S
里
芋
○
○

S
面
一
∞
つ
○
○

P
箪
寝
U
O
S
S
<

p
α
〕
巳
で
O
挽
く

p
①
〕
き
ち
O
S
明
く

」
の
p
こ
き
」
〕
S
O

p
e
〕
e
で
o
S
S
く

る
宝
鑑
岬
S
コ
「

容
壷
}
∽
つ
「

ミ
○
○
p
U
こ

ら
S
○
○
∑
コ

p
ひ
る
で
o
S
S
<

p
馨
e
中
°
S
S
<

35



Our Current premiums and rates of contribution 

 

Additional Information:  

As we discussed the number employees taking advantage of family coverage in every organization is predicated on many 
factors including cost and coverage. In looking to this issue further,  

Usage  
• Libraries that offer family coverage with cost to staff under 20% typically had 15% to 26% take advantage of the 

coverage.  (the Village has about 49% electing family coverage.) 
• Libraries that offer family coverage with cost to staff at 50% or more typically had 0% to 10% take advantage.  

o Of note is that the largest of the survey sample has 125 
employees, 42 that elect coverage. The library covers 85% 
of the cost. Of that 42, 26% elect family coverage, with 7% 
electing PPO family and 3% HMO family.   
Rates 
• Most libraries are part of a pool with other libraries or 
their Towns/Villages. Premiums were consistent with what 
we are seeing with the average being $850 for PPO1 to 
$600 for HMO coverage. 
• The observation is that moving to a different pool 

would not lower costs, however for the first time this year we have an option for staff PPO2.   
Budget for Insurance     

2017-18 Actual 2018-19 
18-19 

Projected 
(if One Moved to 
Family) 

150,000 
      

115,582  140,000 
       

110,492  120,807 
Current Eligible  Current Elected   

19 13 All Have Single  
Future Possibilities     

If all eligible take 
single (19) Single $161,488   
If all eligible take 
single (10) & (9) 
single+1 Single +1 $205,456   

If all eligible take 
single (10) & (5) Family Family $213,064   

 

Premiums PP01
2019 (monthly)

District 
Portion

District Portion - Liability 
PPO1 (Yearly) District Portion - %

 Staff Contribution 
Additional Coverage 

 Staff Portion 
Monthly  Staff Yearly 

814.19               80% 7,816.22                                80% Single -                                       162.84         1,954.06          
1,628.38            7,816.22                                0%  Single+1 977.03                                977.03         11,724.36       
2,324.55            7,816.22                                0% Family 1,673.20                             1,673.20      20,078.40       

 Premiums PPO2
2019 (monthly) 

 District 
Portion 

 District Portion - 
Liability PPO1 (Yearly) District Portion - %

 Staff Contribution for 
Additional Coverage 

 Staff Portion 
Monthly  Staff Yearly 

659.49                     80% 6,331.10                                80% Single -                                       131.90              1,582.78          
1,318.99                  6,331.10                                0%  Single+1 791.40                                791.40              9,496.78          
1,882.89                  6,331.10                                0% Family 1,355.30                             1,355.30          16,263.58       

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Rate PPO1 $656.1 $692.6 $738.8 $775.7 $814.1
Rate  PP02 $659.4

 $-
 $200.00
 $400.00
 $600.00
 $800.00

 $1,000.00

AX
IS

 T
IT

LE

Insurance Rates WNPLD

36



Salary Hours

Monthly 
Vacation 

Leave
Vision 

Insurance
Dental 

Insurance
Medical Insurance 
(employee 20%)

Life 
Insurance

Total Annual 
Insurance 
Benefit* IMRF Benefit

Social 
Security 
Benefits

Annual Pers. 
Bus. Leave 
Benefit*

Annual 
Vacation 

Leave 
Benefit*

Annual Sick 
Leave 

Benefit*
Total Wage & 

Benefits 
Package 
Worth

FT $55,000.00 37.50        12.50 $9.42 $42.45 $651.35 $5.06 $8,499 $3,101 $3,443 $635 $4,231 $2,538 $77,446 $22,446 29%
Single + 1 65% 
(employee 35%)

FT $55,000.00 37.50        12.50 $9.42 $42.45 1,058.46 $5.06 $13,385 $3,101 $3,443 $635 $4,231 $2,538 $82,332 $27,332 33%
Single + 1 50% 
(employee 50%)

FT $55,000.00 37.50        12.50 $9.42 $42.45 814.19 $5.06 $10,453 $3,101 $3,443 $635 $4,231 $2,538 $79,400 $24,400 31%
Family 65% 
(employee 35%) 

FT $55,000.00 37.50        12.50 $9.42 $42.45 1,510.96 $5.06 $18,815 $3,101 $3,443 $635 $4,231 $2,538 $87,762 $32,762 37%
Family 50% 
(employee 50%)

FT $55,000.00 37.50        12.50 $9.42 $42.45 1162.28 $5.06 $14,630 $3,101 $3,443 $635 $4,231 $2,538 $83,577 $28,577 34%

TOTAL WAGE & BENEFITS ANALYSIS

37



 Recommendation for a Change in Insurance Contribution Rate for Library District Employees 

Based on conversations with our current staff and our colleagues in other library institutions, we recommend that 
consideration be given to changing our staff contributions for health insurance, particularly regarding family coverage. 
We feel that this will position us to increase retention and offer a competitive benefits package.  

The recommendation is a starting point for discussion.  

Currently 

• 19 Employees are currently eligible (max level of full-time employees is currently 20) 
o Currently 13 employees have elected Coverage (all 13 are single coverage) 

• Of the 19 eligible employees 9 could potentially take advantage of +1 coverage and/or 5 of the 9 could take 
family coverage (only 2 have expressed interest at this time) 

Librarian - Average Starting Salary | $44,000 
Average Salary of Eligible | $55,000 
 
Recommendation of Contribution Rate effective January 2019 

 

 

 

80

0

85 88
80

50

80

0

75
80

0

75
85 85

0

80

100

85 89 88

75

97 100
95 90 100

90
100

89
80

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Rates of Contribution 
Family Individual Employee

District Portion - 
Liability PPO1 
(Monthly) 

District Portion - 
Liability PPO1 
(Yearly) District Portion - % 

Staff Portion 2019 
Monthly 

Staff 
Contribution 

% Staff Yearly 
                        
692.06  

                                  
8,304.74   85% Single  

                          
122.13  15% 

           
1,465.54  

                     
1,058.45  

                               
12,701.36   65%  Single+1  

                          
569.93  35% 

           
6,839.20  

                     
1,510.96  

                               
18,131.49   65% Family  

                          
813.59  35% 

           
9,763.11  

38


	Agenda Regular December 2018
	Minutes of November 19_2018 FIN
	2018 November Combined Reports
	Library Fund Summary
	General 
	Building Fund
	IMRF Fund
	FICA Fund
	Unemployment 

	CheckDetail November 2018
	Director Report 10-2018 FINAL
	2019 November Summary
	WPL signed SMC pay app 100718 r1
	Health Insurance Recommendation Dec.pdf
	Total Wage  Benefit Analysis Template 2019
	Sheet3




